
  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

Monday, 7 February 2022 at 6.30 p.m., Room C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 
Due to ongoing Covid-19 restrictions, the press and public are encouraged to watch the 

meeting remotely through the https://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home  site 
 

Members:  
 

 

Chair: Councillor Mohammed Pappu  
Vice Chair: Councillor Bex White Scrutiny Lead for Children and Education 
  
Councillor Faroque Ahmed Scrutiny Lead for Community Safety 

Councillor Marc Francis  

Councillor Ehtasham Haque Scrutiny Lead for Housing and Regeneration 

Councillor Denise Jones  

Councillor Gabriela Salva Macallan Scrutiny Lead for Health and Adults 

Councillor Leema Qureshi Scrutiny Lead for Resources and Finance 

Councillor Andrew Wood  

  
Co-opted Members:  
 

 

Halima Islam Co-Optee 
1 Vacant Post 1 Vacant Post 
  
Deputies:  
Councillor Peter Golds, Councillor Zenith Rahman, Councillor Shah Ameen and Councillor Kevin 
Brady 
 
[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members] 

 

Contact for further enquiries: 
David Knight, Democratic Services 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 
London, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4878 
E-mail: david.knight@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 

Scan this code for 
the electronic 
agenda: 

 
 

https://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Public Information 

Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited and 
offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings. 
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page. 

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: D3, D6, D7, D8, 15, 108, and115 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are East India: 
Head across the bridge and then through complex to the 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place  
Blackwall station. Across the bus station then turn right to 
the back of the Town Hall complex, through the gates and 
archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning Town and 
Canary Wharf  
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and display 
parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on 
line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts to venues. 
Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing difficulties are available.  
Documents can be made available in large print, Braille, or audio version. For further information, 
contact the Officer shown on the front of the agenda  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire exit without 
deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to the fire assembly point. If 
you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you to a safe area. The meeting will 
reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found 
on our website from day of publication.   

 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date. 
Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One Stop 
Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SECTION ONE WARD PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   All Wards  

 To receive any apologies for absence.   

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTEREST AND OTHER INTERESTS  

All Wards 7 - 8 

  

Members are reminded to consider the categories of 
interest in the Code of Conduct for Members to determine 
whether they have an interest in any agenda item and any 
action they should take. For further details, please see the 
attached note from the Monitoring Officer.  
 
Members are reminded to declare the nature of the interest 
and the agenda item it relates to. Please note that 
ultimately it’s the Members’ responsibility to declare any 
interests form and to update their register of interest form 
as required by the Code.  
 
If in doubt as to the nature of your interest, you are advised 
to seek advice prior to the meeting by contacting the 
Monitoring Officer or Democratic Services  

  

3. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  All Wards  

 To receive any petitions (to be notified at the meeting).   

4. CHAIRS UPDATE  All Wards  

5. ACTION LOG  All Wards  

 To note the Committees Action Log.   

6. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  All Wards  

6 .1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 13/12/2021   All Wards 9 - 32 

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 13/12/2021. 
 
 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 

6 .2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 24/01/2022   All Wards  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 24/01/2021 – To follow. 

  

7. COMMUNITY SAFETY SPOTLIGHT  All Wards  

7 .1 Community Safety Spotlight with Cabinet Member and 
Borough Commander   

All Wards  

 The Committee will undertake a Spotlight Session with 
Borough Commander and Cabinet Member which will 
outline policing priorities for 2022/23 including an outline of 
achievements and challenges and a  focus on rising youth 
violence in the Borough and actions taken to  address this.  
 

  

8. SPOTLIGHT SESSION  All Wards  

8 .1 Mayors Spotlight   All Wards  

 The Committee will consider an overview of the Mayor’s 
priorities, achievements, and challenges.  

  

9. UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  All Wards 33 - 34 

10. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF UNRESTRICTED 
CABINET PAPERS  

All Wards  

 To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet. 

  

11. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  

All Wards  

 To consider any other unrestricted business that the Chair 
considers to be urgent. 

  

 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   All Wards  

 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the 
agenda the Committee is recommended to adopt the 
following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 

and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
for the consideration of the Section Two business on the 
grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 
1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you 
do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, please 
hand them to the Committee Officer present. 

 

SECTION TWO WARD PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

13. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS 
THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  

All Wards  

 To consider any other exempt/ confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent. 

  

14. PRESENTATION  FOR CONSIDERATION    

 
 

Next Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Monday, 14 February 2022 at 6.30 p.m. to be held in Room C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AT MEETINGS– NOTE FROM THE 

MONITORING OFFICER 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Code of Conduct for 

Members at Part C, Section 31 of the Council’s Constitution  

(i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 

You have a DPI in any item of business on the agenda where it relates to the categories listed in 

Appendix A to this guidance. Please note that a DPI includes: (i) Your own relevant interests; 

(ii)Those of your spouse or civil partner; (iii) A person with whom the Member is living as 

husband/wife/civil partners. Other individuals, e.g. Children, siblings and flatmates do not need to 

be considered.  Failure to disclose or register a DPI (within 28 days) is a criminal offence. 

Members with a DPI, (unless granted a dispensation) must not seek to improperly influence the 

decision, must declare the nature of the interest and leave the meeting room (including the public 

gallery) during the consideration and decision on the item – unless exercising their right to address 

the Committee.  

DPI Dispensations and Sensitive Interests. In certain circumstances, Members may make a 

request to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation or for an interest to be treated as sensitive. 

(ii) Non - DPI Interests that the Council has decided should be registered – 

(Non - DPIs) 

You will have ‘Non DPI Interest’ in any item on the agenda, where it relates to (i) the offer of gifts 

or hospitality, (with an estimated value of at least £25) (ii) Council Appointments or nominations to 

bodies (iii) Membership of any body exercising a function of a public nature, a charitable purpose 

or aimed at influencing public opinion. 

Members must declare the nature of the interest, but may stay in the meeting room and participate 
in the consideration of the matter and vote on it unless:  
 

 A reasonable person would think that your interest is so significant that it would be likely to 
impair your judgement of the public interest.  If so, you must withdraw and take no part 
in the consideration or discussion of the matter. 

(iii) Declarations of Interests not included in the Register of Members’ Interest. 
 

Occasions may arise where a matter under consideration would, or would be likely to, affect the 
wellbeing of you, your family, or close associate(s) more than it would anyone else living in 
the local area but which is not required to be included in the Register of Members’ Interests. In 
such matters, Members must consider the information set out in paragraph (ii) above regarding 
Non DPI - interests and apply the test, set out in this paragraph. 
 

Guidance on Predetermination and Bias  
 

Member’s attention is drawn to the guidance on predetermination and bias, particularly the need to 
consider the merits of the case with an open mind, as set out in the Planning and Licensing Codes 
of Conduct, (Part C, Section 34 and 35 of the Constitution). For further advice on the possibility of 
bias or predetermination, you are advised to seek advice prior to the meeting.  
 

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992 - Declarations which restrict 
Members in Council Tax arrears, for at least a two months from voting  
 

In such circumstances the member may not vote on any reports and motions with respect to the 
matter.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Further Advice contact: Janet Fasan, Divisional Director Legal, Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, Tel: 020 7364 4348. 
 

APPENDIX A: Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 

Subject  Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 
 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a member, 
or towards the election expenses of the Member. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or 
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 
 

 
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.33 P.M. ON MONDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2021 
 

ROOM C1, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Mohammed Pappu (Chair) 
 
Councillor Bex White (Vice-Chair) – Scrutiny Lead for Children and 

Education 
Councillor Faroque Ahmed – Scrutiny Lead for Community Safety 
Councillor Marc Francis  
Councillor Denise Jones  
Councillor Gabriela Salva Macallan – Scrutiny Lead for Health and Adults 
Councillor Leema Qureshi – Scrutiny Lead for Resources and 

Finance 
Councillor Andrew Wood  
  
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Halima Islam – Co-Optee 
James Wilson – Co-Optee 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 

 

Councillor Asma Begum 
 

Councillor Mufeedah Bustin 
 

Councillor Danny Hassell 
 

Councillor Candida Ronald 
 

 
Apologies: 

Councillor Ehtasham Haque – Scrutiny Lead for Housing and 
Regeneration 

Officers Present: 
 
Kevin Bartle – (Corporate Director, Resources & 

Section 151 Officer) 
Rupert Brandon – Interim Head of Housing Supply 
Vicky Clark – (Director of Integrated Growth and 

Development) 
Billy Finnegan – (Youth Offending Service) 
David Freeman – (Policy and Strategy Manager, 

Voluntary and Community Sector 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6.1



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

2 

(VCS) 
Afazul Hoque – (Head of Corporate Strategy & 

Policy) 
David Knight – (Democratic Services Officer, 

Committees, Governance) 
Filuck Miah – (Strategy and Policy Officer, 

Corporate Strategy and Policy 
Team) 

Ann Sutcliffe – (Corporate Director, Place) 
Karen Swift – (Divisional Director, Housing and 

Regeneration) 
James Thomas – (Corporate Director, Children and 

Culture) 
Nisar Visram – (Director of Finance, Procurement & 

Audit) 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST AND 
OTHER INTERESTS  
 
The following Member for transparency declared a potential interest in relation 
to: 

1. Item 9 Pre-Decision Scrutiny Questions Councillor Marc Francis 
due to his wife Councillor Rachel Blake being the Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing. 

 
2. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 22nd November 2021be approved as a correct record of 
the proceedings and the Chair was authorised to sign them accordingly. 
Subject to the following amendment: 
 
Minute 15 Victoria Park 
 
Delete: “Therefore, it would be helpful if the Committee could have a note 
explaining why this was not seemed to be a key decision” and insert: 
Therefore, it would be helpful if the Committee could have a note explaining 
why this was not deemed to be a key decision. 
 
MATTERS ARISING 
 
9.1 Waste and Recycling (22nd November 2021) 
 
Noted that following the spotlight on Waste and Recycling services on 22nd 
November 2021 the Chair advised the Committee that he had submitted the 
recommendations to Councillor Asma Islam (Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Planning) and (i) had asked for a written response to the 

Page 10



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

3 

recommendations; (ii) as soon as this is received it will be circulated to the 
Committee. 
 

3. ACTION LOG  
 
The Committee noted that it had received the response regarding the 
Liveable Streets recommendations as detailed in the Action Log. 
 
In addition, it was noted that there were the following action log items: 
 

 A breakdown of the recent Autumn Budget and Spending Review 
announcement and the projected implications for Tower Hamlets. 

 A report on the review of Leisure Centres that was to be provided to 
the Committee; and 

 A written note to be provided with an explanation as to why the 
decision to agree the extension of AEG was not considered to be a 
key decision. 

 
4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  

 
Nil items. 
 

5. FORTHCOMING DECISIONS  
 
The Committee noted Cabinet forward plan as of 16th November 2021 and 
that for the most up to date version, Members were recommended to check 
the Cabinet web pages on the council’s website. 
 

6. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
Nil Items. 
 

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT  
 

7.1 Housing  
 
The Committee received a presentation that provided an overview of the 
Council’s activities to deliver housing priorities over the last 18 months and 
covered (i) housing projects delivered; (ii) work in progress; (iii) planned work 
including the key housing challenges; and (iv) an update on the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA). The main points raised because of questioning 
summarised as follows: 

 
The Committee: 
 

 Was pleased to hear on the progress being made with house building 
and welcomed the volume of buyback on right to buy properties to 
house homeless households. 

 Noted The buyback scheme has benefits for both the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) and the general fund. In terms of the former, 

Page 11

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=720&RD=0


OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

4 

the additional stock will help to sustain the HRA rental income whilst 
assisting in mitigating the financial pressure arising from the increased 
cost and requirements for temporary accommodation to house 
homeless households in the general fund. 

 Noted that many councillors have seen a deterioration in the quality of 
service being offered by most registered housing providers who are 
managing and maintaining existing homes, providing associated 
services within Tower Hamlets e.g., housing repairs and anti-social 
behaviour (ASB). 

 Was reminded that Tower Hamlets Housing Covenant had set out a 
commitment by the Borough, its ALMO Tower Hamlets Homes and 
registered providers with homes in the borough to work together to (i) 
provide quality value for money housing services; (ii) share a 
commitment to Tower Hamlets residents; and (iii) maximise the supply 
of affordable housing and housing options. 

 Noted that covenant signatories were required to 1 Listen to and 
respect residents’ views; 2 Respect diversity and provide inclusive 
services; 3 Operate transparently and openly; and work cooperatively 
with properly constituted and representative resident groups; 4. 
Respond to Members’ Enquiries and information requests within 
published timescales; 5. Ensure residents live in warm, safe, 
weathertight, and decent homes; 6. Remedy resident repair requests in 
an appropriate and timely manner; 7. Actively participate in tackling 
Anti-Social Behaviour; 8. Be members of the Common Housing 
Register; 9. Evidence value for money in service provision; 10. Share 
key performance data to identify and share best practice; 11. Maximise 
opportunities for residents to take-up work, training and 
apprenticeships; and 12. Identify opportunities for Right-to-Buy receipts 
generated in the Borough to be invested in new housing in Tower 
Hamlets. 

 Commented that it would be of use to be able to identify which of the 
partner housing associations in the Borough are delivering against the 
twelve objectives. 

 Noted that there are number of ways that the Council can collaborate 
with its partners e.g., the Borough therefore shares and promotes good 
practice. 

 Noted that some registered housing providers are incredibly positive 
about strong partnerships in the Borough and that they do not see that 
within all councils.  Although not every housing provider is engaging to 
the same level and there is a challenge there the Lead Member; the 
Mayor and other ward members have incredibly challenging 
conversations with housing providers about the quality of their services 
and plans. 

 Noted some of the continuing challenges of rising rent, fuel poverty 
and the impact of the departure from the European Union on cost of 
labour, skills, and materials. 

 Noted in terms of the winter strategy the Lead Member was happy to 
share more detail on what the Councils approach has been in terms of 
its rough sleeping plan and what is being developed in terms of data 
and outcomes. 

Page 12



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

5 

 Noted that regarding the data on how the Council are currently 
performing on the implementation of improvement the last strategic 
quarterly performance monitoring report submitted to Cabinet showed 
an increase in kind of work in terms of prevention. 

 Noted that the Lead Member had met with an entire range of senior 
managers from housing providers last week to talk about how the 
Members enquiry process can be improved with reference to housing 
issues. The Lead Member indicated that the seniority of those 
attending illustrated a tangible commitment within these housing 
providers to make sure that they get the Members enquiry process 
right. In addition, the Councils own Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee provides an opportunity for Members to review and 
scrutinises those decisions made, or actions taken in connection with 
the discharge of the Council’s housing functions.  

 Commented that the housing providers should not wait for the new 
consumer regulation to look at how they can improve their services and 
engagement with tenants.  

 Agreed that the Council needs to be initiative-taking in obliging the 
regulator and the government to adhere to these very worthy 
objectives. Housing providers must maintain tenants’ homes so that 
they are safe and of a decent standard and that housing providers 
provide a quality service. Where things go wrong, complaints must be 
managed effectively, and things are put right. The relationship between 
tenants and housing providers should be underpinned by shared 
expectations of fairness and respect and a shared understanding of 
their respective rights and responsibilities. Housing providers must 
demonstrate that they understand the diverse needs of the 
communities that they serve, and their services must reflect that. Whilst 
tenants need to understand, use, and have confidence in the recourse 
that they must get problems resolved.  

 Stated that Councillors had to have confidence that housing providers 
are (i) committed to their tenants as they are responsible for meeting 
the regulatory standards; (ii) supporting their tenants to shape and 
scrutinise service delivery, to hold their housing provider to account 
and for understanding their performance and telling the Council if they 
are not meeting a standard. Arising from discussions on this matter the 
Committee expressed concern that in October 2021 following receipt 
of a fire safety report from an engineering advisory consultancy, 
Clarion Housing Group had permanently moved all 120 households out 
of Clare House with immediate effect. Clarion had it was felt not 
managed this serious situation effectively and the relationship between 
tenants and Clarion had been compromised and that this will need to 
be addressed. 

 Noted that the Council has a number of incentive schemes designed to 
help tenants to downsize to smaller homes when their household 
needs change. These tenants can access an entire range of incentives 
depending on what is most appropriate for them on a kind of sliding 
scale according to the size of the property as well as what becomes 
available. Whilst in terms of “knock throughs” to create one home out of 
two adjoining properties this needs to be considered very carefully 

Page 13



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

6 

because whilst it may help solve an immediate families housing issue. 
It does take a property out of circulation therefore stopping another 
family on the waiting list being able to get a property. Therefore, the 
Council primarily considers a “knocking through” to increase the 
available room by utilising that which is considered to be “Dead Space” 
in a property (e.g., old storerooms) and not consider knocking through 
two properties unless there was a set extenuating circumstance, such 
as a severe medical need. 

 Considered waiting lists for larger families, roof top scheme potential, 
incentives for rationalising and obtaining a better understanding of the 
housing management panel process and decisions. 

 
Following a full and wide-ranging discussion, the Chair thanked all those 
Committee Members in attendance together with (i) Councillor Danny Hassell 
(Cabinet Member for Housing); (ii) Karen Swift (Divisional Director, Housing 
and Regeneration); and (iii) Rupert Brandon (Interim Head of Housing Supply) 
for their contributions to get a sense on what has been delivered to date, the 
future and the challenges that the Borough continues to face.  
 
Accordingly, the Committee asked that the Cabinet Member for Housing to 
consider the above comments and the following recommendations. 
 

1. It would continue to monitor this area via the Housing and 
Regeneration Sub-committee and look forward to re-visiting how 
the Council has taken on board the Committees feedback in 2022. 

2. Having raised concerns about the lack of accountability for many of 
the housing providers who are signatories to the Tower Hamlets 
Housing Covenant felt that more affirmative action was required 
from the Council to hold these signatories to account. Accordingly, 
members indicated that it wished to know what sanctions can be 
used to get the covenant signatories to delivering against the twelve 
objectives. 

3. Having heard the progress of the Councils Housing Options service 
on its work with the Homeless transformation programme and the 
rough sleeping delivering plan and recommended using the 
opportunity to follow up on the outcomes on residents who are 
experiencing homelessness but remain housed in hotels. 

 
8. BUDGET & POLICY  

 
8.1 Budget Consultation  

 

The Committee noted that in March 2022, the Council will agree its 
budget for 2022-23 and in line with previous years, the Council has 
conducted consultation with residents, businesses, and other key 
stakeholders to help inform the budget setting process. The results of the 
Council’s 2022-23 budget consultation conducted from October to 
November 2021 were outlined in the report. The key points of the 
discussion may be summarised as follows: 

Page 14



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

7 

 
The Committee: 
 

 Welcomed that budget consultation undertaken earlier this year and 
noted that the findings from the consultation will be incorporated into 
the budget setting process. 

 Noted that the headline findings from the budget consultation 
highlighted Community Safety as the top concern for residents which is 
a shift from the previous year which had been on Public Health. 

 Noted on the top line analysis of the settlement but wanted clarity on 
the potential £18 million extra available to the Council than originally 
assumed as result of government delays on the business rate re-set 
and felt that the historical underestimation on budget setting often 
posed unnecessary risks to cutting services. 

 Commented that it had been extremely useful to get a sense of the 
public mood and expressed the hope that the results from the 
consultation will play its part on next year’s budget. 

 
Following a full and wide-ranging discussion, the Chair thanked all those 
Committee Members in attendance together with Councillor Candida Ronald 
(Cabinet Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector); Nisar Visram 
(Director of Finance, Procurement and Audit Interim); and Kevin Bartle 
(Corporate Director, Resources & Section 151 Officer) for their contributions 
to what had provided Members with a sense of the public’s mood. 
 
Accordingly, the Committee resolved that:  
 

 It looked forward to reviewing the budget and will seek to understand 
how the findings from the budget consultation have been taken on 
board. 

 
8.2 Youth Justice Annual Plan  

 
The Committee received a report that outlined the priorities and strategic 
goals of the Youth Justice Board and as a committee we have an opportunity 
to review this plan and provide our comments and feedback.  

 
For now, the key points for the Committee are: 
 

 Noted that Young People’s service has an ongoing internal auditing 
processes that are embedded within the services practice, although 
there are also a number of annual external audits which are 
commissioned with other local authorities as well as the Her Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP) which makes recommendations to 
identify and disseminate effective practice, challenge mediocre 
performance, and encourage improvement. 

 Noted that about Tower Hamlets restorative justice practice whilst the 
performance has been variable over the years the majority are young 
adults and not children under eighteen. In terms of the custody Tower 
Hamlets (i) has very few young people in custody and maintains a 

Page 15



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

8 

close working relationship with those institutions holding the young 
people; and (ii) maintains a critical eye on the practices in those 
settings to ensure that the young people are kept safe and that their 
offending and education is being addressed. 

 Was pleased to note whilst the report stated that reoffending rate was 
41% there has been a positive trajectory and currently the rate is 
between 34% to 35% and this was expected, and it is anticipated this 
trend will continue. Accordingly, the Committee asked to receive an 
update on these figures to monitor progress. 

 Expressed concern that Black, Asian and minority ethnic young people 
receive harsher sentences and noted that the action plan is designed 
to target each partner agency. Although the multi-agency panels tasked 
to scrutinise decisions held in March 2020 and March 2021 had agreed 
with all but 1 of the decisions that had been made, suggesting that the 
right decisions as a service in terms appropriate disposal have been 
made. 

 However, agreed that attention needs to be considered to the 
disproportionate representation of young black people in the criminal 
justice system and welcomed the ongoing work being done to address 
this. 

 Welcomed (i) the regular dialogue and early engagement with 
statutory partners including voluntary sector and young people through 
a series of workshops with the purpose of developing the vision and 
strategy for this plan; (ii) that First Time Entrants (key performance 
indicator) continues to decrease and recent data suggests this has 
been the lowest in the last three years; (iii) that the service continues 
to track and monitor the Boroughs young people in custody and whilst 
holding a critical eye, maintain a healthy relationship with the custodial 
establishments; and (iv) the preparations being undertaken for the 
Youth Justice Service Inspections (expected in early 2022) including 
setting outcomes to measure the effectiveness of the Youth Justice 
Board.  

 
As a result of discussions on the report, the Chair (i) thanked all those 
Committee Members in attendance together with Councillor Asma Begum 
(Statutory Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Children, Youth Services, 
Education & Equalities); James Thomas (Corporate Director for Children & 
Culture) and Billy Finnegan (Acting Head of Youth Justice & Young People’s 
service) who had provided an overview of the Annual Youth Justice Plan. (ii) 
indicated that it had been useful for the Committee to get a sense of the travel 
of direction and the report itself had outlined some of the progress that has 
been made, some of the key challenges and priorities going forward. 
 
Accordingly, the Committee having reviewed the report on the Annual Youth 
Justice Plan 2021-22 (i) welcomed the service’s partnership approach to 
developing the plan for 2021-2022; and (ii) would be submitting a report to 
Cabinet on this item which would incorporate the Committees comments and 
feedback for consideration. These are outlined below: 
 

Page 16



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

9 

1. Resolved to support the priority around restorative justice and has 
asked for further details on number of children and young people 
benefiting from this approach as part of their rehabilitation process. 

2. Expressed concerned on the report’s conclusion about the ethnic 
disproportionality in remand and sentencing in youth justice system 
thus highlighting a number of inequalities for groups. 

3. Recommended that addressing disproportionality should be reflected 
in the vision of the plan given the significant inequalities that exist. 

 
9. SCRUTINY CHALLENGE SESSION  

 
9.1 Community Buildings  

 
The Committee received a presentation that provided an update on progress 
being made about progress on addressing the recommendations from the 
Premises Charges and Community Benefit Rent Reduction Scheme 
Challenge Session which had been undertaken in November 2019 and 
chaired by Councillor Tarik Khan former scrutiny lead for Resources and 
Finance. The main points raised because of questioning is summarised as 
follows: 
 
The Committee: 
 

 Observed that in relation to community hubs agreeing their own pricing 
whilst the Council can guide and advise it is down to the organisations 
running the hubs to make sure that those hubs are used and utilized by 
the community. However, if no Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) 
organisation is identified to run these hubs, then the Council will have 
to take on the cost of maintaining; servicing and managing those hubs. 

 Noted on the issue of pricing whilst the VCS organizations that operate 
the hubs will have the freedom to set their own pricing, as part of the 
lease arrangement the Council will (i) have some degree of oversight 
on that pricing to ensure that the pricing is fair; (ii) expect premises to 
be accessible to organisations; and (iii) presume that the organisations 
managing the community hubs are essentially going to aim and 
operate on a cost recovery basis. 

 Noted that business rate relief is a critical advantage to VCS  
organizations operating these buildings which enables them to run the 
premises on a more cost effectively basis than the Council could and 
therefore potentially to pass those savings onto those organisations 
that want to hire space in the buildings. 

 Noted that the most significant challenge is that of fairness because 
space is one of the Borough’s most scarce resources as highlighted in 
the earlier part of the committee meeting tonight regarding the Scrutiny 
Spotlight on Housing. 

 Acknowledged that for many community hubs just starting up one of 
the most challenging issues that they need to address is identifying 
their individual business activities and responsibilities e.g. duties 
around health and safety and managing a facility can become very 
challenging and an organisation does not have any experience in the 

Page 17



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

10 

management of such facilities then it can be really time-consuming and 
if an organisation gets it wrong that can have serious consequences for 
that organisation. 

 Commented that the Council have the experience and understanding 
of those complications to ensure those buildings are run safely and 
legally that can be shared with VCS organisations (e.g., policies in 
relation to health and safety). 

 Acknowledged that the presentation had illustrated how the outcomes 
that were included in the Cabinet report on 24th March 2021 will be 
addressed in the future management of the community hubs.  

 Noted the Council in November 2016, agreed a scheme to reduce the 
rent payable for third sector organisations who meet specific criteria 
relating to the community benefit of their activities and their 
organisational governance and management, the Community Benefit 
Rent Reduction Scheme (CBRR). These new arrangements initially 
affected organisations in buildings in the council’s community premises 
portfolio but have since been extended to existing VCS occupiers of 
other council premises.  

 Commented that there has been noteworthy progress since scrutiny 
undertook the challenge session and anticipated that the Council will 
continue to develop its response to the scrutiny challenge session on 
the Boroughs premises charges and community benefit rent reduction 
scheme. 

 
Following a full and wide-ranging discussion, the Chair thanked (i) Councillor 
Mufeedah Bustin (Cabinet Member for Social Inclusion) for providing the 
Committee with the progress on the recommendations together with David 
Freeman (Corporate Strategy and Policy Manager) and Vicky Clark (Director 
of Integrated Growth and Development); and (ii) stated that the Committee 
are pleased with the progress made on the recommendations and hope those 
areas where on-going work needs to take place continues. 
 

9.2 Scrutiny challenge session report: The extent to which the council’s 
parking permit policy influences people’s behaviour  
 
The Committee reviewed the Parking Challenge Session report that outlined 
the findings and recommendations on the extent to which the Council’s 
parking permit policy influence’s people’s behaviour. The Report set out eight 
recommendations for agreement by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
The Challenge Session considered how (i) will the Council manages the 
demand for parking provision with the projected population growth to reach 
361,400 by 2027 and supports post pandemic business growth; (ii) will the 
Council continue to maintain its current levels of parking surplus given the  
extrinsic change factors such as (a) the Mayor of London’s Ultra Low 
Emission Zone (ULEZ) expansion scheme that came into force on 25th 
October 2021; (b) more planned car free dwellings; (c) drop in footfall from 
passing trade for businesses; (d) the development of the work from home 
culture; and (e) inflationary costs to public transport; (iii) the Council will 
encourage residents and businesses to switch to EV (Electric Vehicle)’s and 
ensure that they understand the implications for ULEZ expansion scheme; 

Page 18



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

11 

and (iv) to capture any insights that help to understand residents behaviour 
and receptiveness to change, particularly those from lower economic 
background.  This challenge session provided the Committee with a chance to 
scrutinise the Council’s current approach to its parking permit policies and 
how it influences  
resident’s behaviour. The main points raised because of questioning 
summarised as follows: 
 
The Committee: 
 

 Noted that it was clear from the evidence heard that parking is an 
integral element of not only the transport strategy but many of the other 
council’s priorities and aspirations. 

 Acknowledged that striking the right balance for parking to 
accommodate the diverse needs of the Borough is an ongoing 
challenge. 

 Welcomed the Council’s ambition to reduce petrol and diesel vehicles 
to protect the environment and to facilitate the uptake of electric 
vehicles. 

 Recognised that there is an immediate need to manage the current 
demand for parking and align this with future demand. 

 Thanked Councillor Ahmed for taking the initiative to undertake this 
challenge session, which had examined an aspect of the Council 
services that warranted scrutiny. 

 Encouraged officers; the Lead Member and the Mayor to consider not 
just to read the recommendations but also the narrative as it (i) 
explains the reason why those that were able to attend reached those 
conclusions; and (ii) is evidence of the extent of the problem. 

 Noted the challenges faced by residents and business including the 
number of empty parking bays that are not being fully utilised, that 
could be cascaded down to local businesses and residents. 

 Noted that about the permit transfer scheme it is essential that more 
flexibility is introduced as the system is not working in a way that is fair 
and transparent to residents. In addition, the current the policy seems 
to discriminate against smaller families and those who want to 
downsize into smaller accommodation. 

 Agreed that the report’s recommendations are (i) not there to provide 
an answer to all the current challenges; and (ii) a starting point to begin 
to develop a fair and transparent policy. 

 Noted the recommendations within the report to (i) improving capacity 
where demand is great, (ii) a review of the Permit Transfer Scheme, 
(iii) a review of long-term pricing, (iv) enhancing the use of car clubs, 
and EV charging points. 

 
Following a wide-ranging discussion, the Chair thanked (i) Councillor Faroque 
Ahmed (Scrutiny Lead for Community Safety) for presenting the report and 
those councillors in attendance for their contributions to what had been a 
constructive discussion on this critical issue. 
 
Accordingly, the Committee: 

Page 19



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

12 

 
(i) Resolved to agree the report and recommendations of the Parking 

challenge session held in November 2021. 
(ii) Noted that the service will now develop an action plan response to be 

agreed by Cabinet; and 
(iii) Invited the Cabinet Lead Member back to provide an update on 

progress next year. 
 

10. UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 
The Committee received and noted the updates submitted and received the 
following verbal update from Councillor Marc Francis on behalf of Councillor 
Ehtasham Haque (Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Sub Committee) 
regarding the Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Sub Committee – held on 
Thursday, 2nd December 2021 6.30 p.m. It was noted that: 
 
The Sub-Committee had (i) considered a report on the performance of social 
housing landlords; (ii) received representations from the Tenants and 
Residents Association of Clare House, (as referenced in Minute 7.1 above); 
(iii) noted that the invitations to Spitalfields Housing Association (SHA) to 
attend both the 9th September and this 19th October meetings of the Sub-
Committee had been declined, and that there were SHA residents in 
attendance who wished to raise concerns with their housing provider. 
Accordingly, it had been agreed to ask the Mayor what he intended to do 
about the ongoing situation with SHA and it is hoped that the sub-committee 
get a quick response on this issue. 
 

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF UNRESTRICTED CABINET PAPERS  
 
Following comments by the Committee the Pre-Decision Scrutiny Questions 
(PDSQ) Members agreed the questions/recommendations that they wanted 
to raise with Cabinet on the 15th of December 2021 (See attached appendix). 
 

12. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  
 
The Committee noted that: 

 
 With no other business to discuss, the Chair called the meeting to a 

close; and  
 The next meeting will be on Tuesday, 11th January 2022 on scrutinising 

the budget. 
 
Finally, the Chair thanked scrutiny members, for their attendance and 
participation tonight and wished everybody a good festive break.  
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

Page 20



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/12/2021 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

13 

As the agenda circulated contained no exempt/confidential reports and there 
was therefore no requirement to exclude the press and public to allow for its 
consideration. 
 

14. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
Nil items. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.03 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Mohammed Pappu 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

1 
 

Questions Response 

Item 6.1 Net Zero Carbon Partnership Action Plan  

1. Appendix 2 "Quick wins by May 2021” marked in yellow - were these 
delivered by May 2021? 
 

The quick wins are designed to be delivered in the first 6 months of the 
plan (November 2021 – May 2022). 

As an update to the highlighted ‘quick wins’: 

 It has been agreed the Climate Alliance to be set up, a meeting 
with the taskforce members has been scheduled for January 
2022 to agree the terms of reference, operating model and 
membership. 

 Good practice and projects were shared during COP 26, we will 
continue to share good practice on our council website, partner 
websites and newsletters. 

 Council officers sit on the NHS North East London Sustainability 
Working Group and will continue with this engagement. 

 Carbon accounting tool has been developed and is currently 
being tested by selected organisations and will be rolled out after 
the successful pilot testing.   

 The 3-part youth challenge is being delivered by the Youth 
Council. 

 Council and partners applying for external funding, where the 
Council have made successful bids for the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Fund and Local Authority Delivery Fund 

2. The Climate Change Emergency was announced 2 1/2 years ago (the 
Paris Agreement was 6 years ago) - where is the list of tasks already 
completed? 

We committed to becoming a Net Zero Carbon Council by 2025, and a 
Net Zero Carbon Borough by 2045 

P
age 23



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

2 
 

key achievements: 

Buildings & Energy 

 Installed heat pumps across four Council buildings  

 Since 2019 the council purchases 100 per cent renewable 
electricity 

 98 per cent of our street lighting upgraded to LED. 

 Removed all plastic cups from our offices 

Delivery of grants programmes: 

 100% grant funded 26 schools with a total of £618,000 to carry 
out energy efficiency works saving 348 tonnes carbon.  

 50% match grant funded 87 small businesses with a total of 
£403,000 to carry out energy efficiency works saving 198 tonnes 
carbon 

 100% grant funded 96 low-income households with a total of 
£264,000 to replace old inefficient boilers reducing carbon 
emissions and helping to alleviate fuel poverty 

 Completed Bio-solar retrofit feasibility study of council housing 
stock to deliver renewable energy generating technologies 
(photovoltaics) 

 We are part of the Solar Together London, a group buying 
scheme for London Councils for purchasing solar panels and 
battery storage for homeowners 

Transport 

 Adoption of Tower Hamlets Transport Strategy which sets out 
our vision and priorities for travel in Tower Hamlets from 2020 – 

P
age 24



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

3 
 

2041 through sustainable means of transport 

 We have installed 99 electrical vehicle charging points across the 
borough 

 Launched Liveable Streets programme. 

 Planted 700+ street trees and working towards delivering 1000 
street trees by 2022. 5,518 trees in total delivered across the 
borough since May 2018. 

 Rolling out electric vehicle charging points across the borough 
against a target of 300 by 2022. On track to install 350 by 
February 2022. 

 Breathe clean campaign tackling idling and air pollution 

Waste  

 Through a recycling incentive scheme pilot by using comms and 
other behaviour change initiatives we aim to encourage better 
recycling behaviour on housing estates 

 We provide community composters to council, social housing 
and private estates and blocks, with the resultant compost 
product used in communal garden space or to aid food growing 
projects. We support groups in developing and implementing 
composting schemes   

 We offer a full recycling service to businesses and have been 
working to encourage businesses to recycle more of the waste 
they produce.  

 We delivered a pilot scheme to inform development of a toolkit 
that businesses can use to implement their own reusable cup 
scheme.  

 Waste and recycling supplementary planning document ensuring 
schemes have internal space for waste and recycling facilities 

 We will install c.8-10 drinking fountains within parks across the 

P
age 25



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

4 
 

borough  

Procurement  

 The pensions fund is on a journey towards decarbonisation of 
their investments. 

 Adopting new green procurement policies 

Land use and other 

 Adopted Local Plan policies that require all new developments to 
achieve net zero carbon status. 

 Lifecycle carbon assessments required for major planning 
development. 

 Environmental impact assessments which include consideration 
of climate change resilience and adaptation.  

 Local biodiversity action plan to protect, create, and enhance 
biodiversity. 

 Scrutiny review to improve health, environmental quality, 
economic and social outcomes through Housing Open Spaces. 

 Open spaces strategy to achieve quality parks and open spaces 
that are safe and accessible to residents and visitors. 

London Environment Directors Network 

 The Council is the chair of the London Environment Directors 
Network (LEDNet) Climate Change Cluster.  

Item 6.3 Liveable Streets Shadwell consultation outcome report  

P
age 26



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

5 
 

Scheme 1/ School Streets - I note that there was some proposals for 
changes to the timings of operation. 

1. Please confirm if the hours of operation is consistent for all school streets 
across the borough or are there variances?  

There are sometimes variances depending on the circumstances of and 
requests from the school but the closure times between 8.15am to 
9.15am and 3pm to 4pm on school days are the most common times 
used for school streets in Tower Hamlets. 

Scheme 4/ Cable street Traffic management - It is proposed that some 
right turns from the highway will be banned. 

2. What impact will these have on residents from Wapping?  

These banned right turns are timed to address rat running and have 
been timed to minimise disruption to residents.  

However, Wapping residents approaching these roads from the west 
and wishing to turn left into these roads will be able to do so. For 
example, if a Wapping resident wanted to drive north on Garnet Street 
or Wapping High Street, they could turn right onto the highway and left 
into King David Lane, Glamis Road or Brodlove Lane during the 
restricted hours. 

3. Appendix D - The bar graphs on pages 25 & 27 show the same results - 
disabled and BAME - this is improbable - can you check?  
 

There seem to be some duplication here. Officers will need some more 
time to identify the source of the error. 

4. Appendix D - What were the businesses / workers response to the 
consultation? 
 

Before the consultation project team officers undertook face-to-face 
engagement with location businesses. 

In the main consultation, there was a total of 592 respondents to the 
consultation of which 328 were received online and the remaining 264 
were paper responses. From these responses 8 were from business 
owners and 37 from market traders. 

5. Appendix D - Why are the responses by ethnic group so different? 
 

It has been an ongoing challenge to ensure the ethnic breakdown of 
consultation responses reflects the same breakdown of the consultation 
area. This has been the in consultation of this project and previous 
projects. 

Consultation packs, containing an information booklet (including a link 
to online survey) hard copy survey and freepost return envelope, were 

P
age 27



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

6 
 

delivered to the 5,613 residential and business properties within the 
consultation area. There were 264 hard copy surveys received by return 
post. 

There was an opportunity for those within the community who did not 
have English as a first language to request translated documents. 
Through local knowledge of the area, it was identified that Shadwell has 
a high population of Bengali speakers, therefore, the consultation 
document and survey were available in this language to download from 
the website. The English version of the consultation document also 
included a sentence in Bengali advising residents, visitors, and 
businesses on how to request a full Bengali copy of the consultation 
document. 

Officers are actively reviewing our consultation methodology for future 
projects to see if we can improve participation from all ethnic groups.  
 

                                                                                                            
 
  

Item 6.4 Harriott, Apsley & Pattison (HAP) Houses Regeneration Scheme  

Decant status to be approved. 

1. How will this impact those who are on the CHR already waiting for years?  

The award of decant status will give priority to the 34 secure tenants 
and their households for rehousing. However, each of these tenants 
also have the offer of a replacement home within the new scheme, so 
we expect the vast majority will chose to remain living in their current 
home until their replacement home is completed. On top of the 
replacement homes, the scheme will also create 90 additional 
affordable rented homes and 20 new Shared Ownership properties for 
low-cost home ownership. The additional 90 rented homes will be 
available to those registered on the Common Housing Register. The 
scheme also makes provision for those hidden households within the 

P
age 28



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

7 
 

existing estate who are in housing need. They will have the option to bid 
for a home elsewhere in the borough, or to take up one of the additional 
new homes if they would prefer to stay in their local community. 

Landlord offer for current parking permits guaranteed. 

2. Is this any different to the current policy for car free homes? If so, why and 
how?  

One of the Council’s guiding principles for estate regeneration is to 
ensure existing residents are not put in a worse position than they 
currently enjoy. It has therefore been the council’s practice with 
previous regeneration schemes to protect the existing rights of council 
tenants and leaseholders who currently benefit from the right to have a 
parking permit(s). This scheme is no different, so whilst the planning 
application proposes a car-free development for all new residents of the 
homes, an exemption is proposed for those existing residents moving 
into the new scheme. 

3.  £215 million / 400 homes = £537,500 per home - this seems high 
compared to various new private sector developments i.e. Westferry 
£414k agreed earlier this year with the Councils consultants - what cost 
analysis has been done? 
 

The council has used external cost consultancy services to estimate the 
total scheme costs, which include the costs of buying back leaseholder 
properties, Home Loss and disturbance payments, other costs with 
achieving vacant possession of the site and contingency. In deducting 
these costs, reduces the cost per unit to £417k. 

4. What is the legal basis for agreeing a new lease for RCCM of 125 years 
given that their existing lease will have less than 15 years remaining by 
the time work starts? what is the likelihood that a primary religious building 
will be required for that length of time? 
 

In re-providing space for the mosque the Council is acknowledging the 
importance of prayer space to the current population of the area. While 
we cannot predict the future demographics of the borough, it is not 
unusual for faith organisations to request and be granted long tenures 
reflecting the enduring role they expect to play in the life of the 
community. The price set for disposal reflects the length of the lease. In 
the event that a mosque is no longer required on this site, future 
community use will be safeguarded by the planning designation of the 
space and under the terms of the proposed lease, there is a 
requirement to seek the landlord’s approval for a change of use.   LBTH 
may use the requirement for consent to safeguard the space for the 
community. 

P
age 29



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

8 
 

5. What is the cost of building the new mosque and how much of the cost is 
being contributed to by RCCM? 

The build cost for the community building is £3,000 per sqm. In selling a 
long lease for the building at market value to RCCM, the council will be 
recovering the cost of providing the community space 

 

Item 6.8 Disposal of Bromley Hall School and Associated land at Aberfeldy  

1. Will the Council’s responsibility for security cease?  
 
 

Once the property has been transferred over to the purchaser then the 
Councils security responsibility will cease 

Item 6.9 Canon Barnett primary school academy conversion 

1. To whom will the capital from the playground swap be remitted? (Sections 
3.4 and 3.5) 
 

The capital from the playground swap will be received by the council 
and ring-fenced for capital investment in schools 

 

P
age 30



Overview & Scrutiny PDSQs 13.12.2021   
 

9 
 

 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY LEADS UPDATES OSC MEETING 7TH FEBRUARY 2022 
 
COUNCILLOR BEX - SCRUTINY LEAD FOR CHILDREN AND EDUCATION 
 

 Prior to Christmas 2021 the Chair submitted written enquiries on preparations 
for possible school closures, although in the event these did not happen. The 
Sub-Committee will continue to have a Covid impact update as a standing 
item on the agenda, and at the next meeting will investigate the impact of the 
Omicron wave on education and children's social care.  

 On Monday 17th January 2022 the Chair met with the Cabinet Member and 
Corporate Director for a departmental update.  

 The Written Statement of Action in response to the recent Ofsted/CQC 
inspection of our SEND service has been accepted by Ofsted. This will be the 
main item on the agenda for February's Sub-Committee.  

 The Sub-Committee agreed to move the meeting to 4:30-6:30 on a permanent 
basis, as this makes it easier for children, young people, and external partners 
to attend. The Sub-Committee has had its most valuable contributions when 
they hear directly from those on the front line, so this change is welcomed. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST AND OTHER INTERESTS
	6.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 13/12/2021
	PDSQs 13.12.2021 (005)

	9 UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS

